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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of EC Commodity Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of EC Commodity Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accorchng to the explananons glven to us, the
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amended (“the Act”) in the manner so reqmred and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2021, its loss mcludmg other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in eqmty

. for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics® issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
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misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

‘The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with [the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended]. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company s
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to hquldate “the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of iniernal
control. 5

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible

_for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

‘1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, We give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of the
Company With reference to these Ind AS [inaucial statements and the opcrating cffectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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(g) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, no remuneration has
been paid by the Company to its directors during the current year;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
special purpose financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the special purpose financial
statements,

fi. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103429W

4o

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.:39070

UDIN: 2103%070AAAAIM6241

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of EC Commodity

Limited (‘the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, we report

that:
Q)

(iD)

(ii)

(iv)

)
(vi)

(viD)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
fixed assets by which all the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years. In our opinion this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not own
immovable properties, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has conducted physical verification of inventory on the basis of statement received
from depository participants in respect of securities and vault receipts in respect of cormmodities

noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to vs, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested in respect of which the provisions of
section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investment made.

‘The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for any activities conducted and services rendered by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, services
tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues,
applicable to it, have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, Company did not have any dues on account of
employees’ state insurance, duty of excise and duty of custom.

-heldns-inventorysat-reasenable intervals during. the.vear. No.material... discrepancies have been.. oo

- Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amaunts payable in..........

respect of provident fund, income-tax, services tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
service tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, bank,
government and debenture holders. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial
remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Aooording o e mformation-and -cxplanations given- by the-managementy i
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and

amonntiaroe. serth the
aunsacteng-wnih-ing -

...accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xiii). insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Actismot .

(xiv)

(xv)

{(xvi)

applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountaits

Firm Registratio

H

Haridas Bhat

Partner

Membership No.:39070 \E{E;/rés(}\}’
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_ UDIN: 21039070AAAAIM6241

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EC Commodity Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Repoiting (the “Guldance Note™) and the Standards on Audiling s specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A compaity's initernal finaicial control over financial reporting with Tefererice to these standalone Ind AS

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
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with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Interna! Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal
finanicial controls over finaficial féporting with refererice to these standalone Ind AS fimanciul slatements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,

JIore

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.:39070

UDIN: 21039070AAAAIM6241

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021



EC Commodity Limited
Balance Sheet

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of cyen date.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Registration Ng# 103429W

T

Haridas Bhat

Partner

Membership No: 039070
Mumbai

18 May 2021

Note
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment K
Other Intangible asscts K
Financial assets
(i) Investments 8
(ii) Bank balances other than cash und cash equivalents 9
(iii} Other financial assets 10
Current Lax assets (net} 1t
Deferred tax asscts {nct) 12
Current assets
Financial assets
() Stack in trade 13
(ii) Trade receivables 14
(iii} Cash and cash cquivaicnls 15
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash couivalenis i6
(v) Loans 17
(vi) Other financial assets 18
Other non- financial asscts 19
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
S 20 11) § 1 ' u—
Equity share capital 20
(hher equity 21
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilities
Provisions 23
Current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Borrowings 23
Trade payables
(i) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 43
(ii) tota] outstanding dues of credilors ather than micro enterprises and
small enterpriscs 24
QOther financial liabilitics 25
Other current liabilities 26
Pravisions 27
Current tax liobilitics (net) 28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements. 1 to 53

As af
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

0.15 0.26
0.00 0.00
19.51 18.59
0.26 .04
0.42 0.47
312 6.52
0.14 0.i7
23.60 26,05
S87.19 264,92
0.05 0.15
2.88 231

- 1.97

- 0.00
502.86 2,05
9.80 iL.29

e
kg bk

1,126,38 J08.74
300.00 300.00
(453.08) (367.30)
(153.08) (67.30)

0.23 0.46
0.23 0.46
1,276.61 366.32
147 4.13
G50 0.41
0.40 225
008 0.10
0.17 237
1,279.23 375.58
1,126.38 308.74

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ravindra Dhohale
Director
EHN 05147051

g g g

upx Agarwa
Mumbai
18 May 2021

DIN 07300976

Chintamani Purohit
Chief Financial Qfficer




EC Commodity Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency : Indian mpees in mutlions)

Revenue from operations

Net gain on fair value changes
Interest income

Sale of commoditics

Total Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Expenscs

Purchases of commodities

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Drepreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenscs

Loss before tax

.. Taxexpenses:
Currént {ax’ )
Deferred tax
(1) MAT credit entitlement *
(2) Deferred tax {net)
{Note:*0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,800}
" Lass foF the yéar . ’

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be veclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (GC1)

Fair value gain /loss - OCI - equity

Less: Tax effect on Remeasurement gain / loss on defined bencfit plans (OCI) *
(Note:*0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000)

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
Basic
Diluted

Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Acconniants
Firm's Registration Ne: 103420W

v

Haridas Bhat

Partner

Mombership No: 03507¢
Murnbai

I8 May 2021

Note

30

31

32
33

34

38

Ito 53

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(17.59) (21.62)
43,52 23.98
346,22 312,39
372.15 314,75
0.22 -
372,37 31473
346.35 312.34
2.77 409
72.64 32.36
0.11 6.28
40.20 7.77
462,07 356.84
(89.70) (42.69)
(3.949) 0.94)
0.03 12.03
.00 -
0.02 12.03
T e
0.01 0.03
- (426.25)
0.00 n.on
0.01 (426.21)
(85.78) (479.39)
(2.86) (.77
(2.86) Q7N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ravindra Dhobale

Dircetor

DIN 05147051

ﬂ?mﬁ" o Lkt

Rup Agarwalu

5,

Company Secretary

Mumbai
18 May 2021

Chintamani Purohit
Chief Financial Officer




EC Commodity Limited
Cash Flow Statement

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Provision for gratuity and compensated leave absences

Share of profit from parinership firm
Income from investment in fund
Interest income

Interest expense

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments for working capital changes:
Decrease in fixed deposit
Increase in stock in trade

(Increase} / 'Decrease in derivative and other financial assets

Decrease / (Increase) in other non financial assets
Decrense in trade receivables

Increase / {Decrease) in ether financial liabilitics
Decrease in non financial Habilities and provisions
Decrease in trade payables

Cash (used in) / generated from eperations

Less : Income taxes refund / paid

““Mor cash (used in) 7 generated from operating activities <A~

B Cash flow from investing activities
Sale / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipment
Fnvestment in partner's capital account
Settiement of pariner’s current account
Interest received
{Issue) / repayment of loan {refer note 2)
Investment in fund
Net cash used in investing activities - B

C Cash flow from financing activities

{Repayment of) / proceeds from borrowings other than debt securitics (refer note 2)

Interest paid
Net cash generated from financing activities- C

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year {refer note | below)

Nates:

Cash and cash equivalents include the following:
Balances with scheduled banks in current accounts

2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date,

For GMJ & Co,
Chartered Aceountants
Firm's Registration Now

H

Haridas Bhat

CPURREE e e
Membership No: 039070
Mumbaj
{8 May 2021

{89.70) {42.09
011 0.28
0,01 0.03
0.03 {0.15)
4.03 0.57

{0.06) {0.04)
- {6.20)
72.64 32.32

(12.95) {15.28)

1.75 40,14
(322.26) (264.92)
(500.76) 263.41

1.4% {1.53)

0.10 1.10

.10 (2.25)

@12 (2.87)
(2.67) (4.03)
{837.33) 13.77
........ 314 {2.32)
(832.19) I1.45
0.00 0.07
- (752.50)
(4.03) 175.68
0.00 6.25
- 82.30
(0.86) {18.5%5)
(4.89) (356.75)

908,17 360.30

(70.52) {27.06)

837.65 333,25
0.57 {12.05)
2.31 14.36
2.88 233
2.88 2.31
2.88 2.3}

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

T

Ravindra Dhobale
Director™ 77
DTN 05147651

Do ot e
&
Rupa Agarwal
Company Secretary

Mumbai
18 May 2021

Chintamani Purohit
Chief Financial Officer




EC Commodity Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

(Currency : Indian mpees in millions)

(A} Equity share capital As af As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 300.00 300.00

Changes in equity share capital {refer note 20} - .

Balance at the end of the year 300.00 300,00

(B} Other Equity

Equity
s it Instruntents
lL‘CllI'll tes ESOP reserve Retained carnings | through Other Total
Preminm )
Comprehensive
Income

Balance at 1 April 2019 208.34 1.08 (97) - 112.09

Loss for the year - - (53.18) - (53.18)

Other comprehensive income - - .04 {426.25) (426.21)

Total comprehensive income for the vear - - (53.14) {426.25) (479.39)

Balance at 31 March 2020 (Ind AS) 208.34 1.08 (150.51) {426,21) (367.30)
______ LALossforthe vear. ... N B L emRamy) RS B IR

Other comprehensive incame - - 0.0t - 0.01

Totat comprehensive income for the year - - {85.78) - (85.78)

Balance at 31 March 2021 (Ind AS) 208.34 1.08 (236.29) (426.21) (453.08)

Securities premium
Securities premium is used 1o record the premium on issuc of shares, The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

ESOP reserve

Certain of the Company's employees have been granted options to acquire equity shases of the Ultimate Parent Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited), This
reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair valuc at the prant dates as recognised over the vesting period of such options, to the extent that the Ultimate
Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the Company.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For GMJ & Co. For and on behalf of the Biayd of Directors

Chartered Accountants
g —

Firm's Registration Noe” 103429W

g
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Partner ST Director

Membership No: 039070 o DIN 05147051 DIN 07300976

Mumbai
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Rupa Agarwal Chintamani Purehit
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EC Commodity Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Background

EC Commodity Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 5 August 2008 as a public
limited company for carrying out the business of trading and brokers and sub brokers in
commodities,

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services
Limited. The Company has surrendered the license as a trading and clearing member in
commodity derivatives segment of NCDEX and MCX w.ef 07 October 2019 and 12
November 2019 respectively.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value

through profit and loss account and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value. The Company’s financial statements dre presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India,
resulting in significant volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and
India’s economic activities. On March 11, 2020, this outbreak was declared a global
pandemic by the World Health Organization. On March 24, 2020, the Indian Government
announced a 21 — days lockdown which was further extended tilt 31st May 2020 across the
nation to contain the spread of the virus and still continues to be across many parts of the
country in India. The pandemic and its consequent adverse effect on the economy also
adversely impacted the financial markets.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s management has assessed the impact
of the pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its investments as at
March 31, 2021 based on estimate of the future results and various internal and external
information available up to the date of approval of these financial statements. The estimates
as at the date of approval of these financial results may differ based on the ongoing impact of
the pandemic and the timing of the improvement in the economy and the financial markets.
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Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in compliance with the Division II of the Schedule
III to the Companies Act, 2013,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet.
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event,
the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business
e The event of default
¢ The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the company and or its counterparties

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

T AN a8 1S classified a8 current when 1t 18 éxpected to be réalized m, or'is miended 1or sale or’

consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose
of being traded or it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date or it
is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or expected to be used
to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets include the
current portion of non-current assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be seftled in the company’s normal
operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or it is due to be seftled
within 12 meonths after the reporting date or the company does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of the
liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of

equity instruments do not affect its classification. Current liabilities include current portion of
non-current liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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4.

4.1
4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Fee income including advisory fees for services rendered is accounted over the period as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVTOCI. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and thercfore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the
effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics
of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
- than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying

amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.
When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised

“cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the

Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Company calculates
interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised
cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at original recognition,
discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the
POCI assets.

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Company’s right to
receive payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rates at the time of execution of
transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date.

Commodities sales are accounted as per the terms of agreement with parties.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially

‘recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place, The Company recognises borrowings when
funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
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liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

4.2.3 Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable
in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on
models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

431 Financial assets: .

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing
the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*+  Amortised cost
*  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI]
*  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

«  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

o if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

e If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow.

e  Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at

fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

* the coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Other than above classification of amortised cost and FVOC], all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at FVTPL.
4.3.1.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest rate method (EIR)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
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4.3.1.3

4.3.14

4.3.2

4.3.2.1

4.3.2.2

the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial asset measured at FVOCI

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or losses
are recycled to statement of profit and loss. Interest income on such instrument is recognised

in statement of profit and lnss. as.per FIR method.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss; unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for frading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met.
Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

¢ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
~ would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; or
 The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or
o The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or
it is clear with liftle or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.
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4.3.2.3

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in statement of profit and loss with the exception of
movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s
own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the own credit reserve through
OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments
designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the
EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an
integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at
FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate,

Financial guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the

__.mmarantee or_the commitment, Suhcementlv they ars measenred at hinhar oFf thia amnartinsd
Lgraraiies. o 106 commement, . subgequently ey are measureg ab higher of s on S0

4.3.2.4

433

4.3.4

amount and the amount of loss allowance.

Loan commitment

Undrawn loan commitments arc commitments under which, the Company is required (o
provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer during the duration of commitment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts of an entity
after deducting all of its Habilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received.

Derivatives

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure
to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts
and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and
loss immediately.
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4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

4.5 Derecognition of financial assets and financial labilities

4.5.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan,
with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial asset are

classified as Stage | for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed
to be POCL
C o WWhen assessing wheilier or not o derecognise a financial assets, amongsl othérs, the
Company considers the following factors:
¢  Change in currency of the loan
e Introduction of an equity feature
‘e " Change in counterparty

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

» The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset; or

» It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’
arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to ane or more entities (the ‘eventual
recipients”), when all of the following conditions are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

* The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients

The Company bas to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,

T
00
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except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period
between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.
A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical

ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that

ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer,

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,

sup_h an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the

recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial
liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as
new financial Hability, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as “financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolic of
its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset
being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

“Lifetime ECL represeiits the expected credit losses that will résult from all possible default

events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
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down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

If a financial instrument includes both a loan (i.e. financial asset) and an undrawn
commitment (i.e. loan commitment) component and the Company cannot separately identify
the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial asset component, the
ECL on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss allowance for the
financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset, the ECL have been recognised as a provision. Also, for other loan
commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance has been recognised as
a provision,

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guardntees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on
the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements,
is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Asscts determined to be useful for the internal
operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed
value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is
determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if
financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date
in, line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or
other assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has
no reasonable expectation of recovery,

Forborne and modified loan

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans
as a response to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when suc
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concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected
financial difficulties and the Company would not have agreed to them if the borrower had
been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, or
significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as
calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne
loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition
decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case
basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as
an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, The. fair value measnrement is hased on the presumntion that the transaction to gell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order
to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Level | financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has access at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or [iabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over
the entire period of the instrument’s life.

¢ " "Level 3 financial instiuments —Those that includé one or fnore unobservable input that is

significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation
techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
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estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instrumnents,

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the
reporting period.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
sharcholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could

have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. Transactions in currencies other than
Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at

the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the
petiod in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme
The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which

is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.14.2 Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted W delerming its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if
any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined
based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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4.14.3

4.14.4

4.15

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.
The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that
are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a correspondmg increase in equity. At the end of each reportmg

mosind. the Mamnnny reviars e potineate nf fhz frimabher o -
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vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in statement of
profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the *ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted
vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instaliment as 4 separate
grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each
instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and freated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date
of disposal.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its tangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value 4s its deemed cost as of the transition date.

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part
C of the Schedule II for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed
assets are as follows:
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated
Useful Life
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

4.16  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
Company.

] 114 T+vads - rrmatiam b anedt The aced o0
. Intangible assets.acquired ceparately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accunwmlated impairment losses. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life.

4.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

4.18  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

4.19  Provisions and Contingent liabilities

~Provisions are recognised when the Cumpuny hus a present obligation (legal of constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
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4.20

4.20.1

.. ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss hecanse of items of income

there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax (net).
Current fax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

or expense that arc taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:

o the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

® tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply i
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4.20.3 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

5.1

' . ;;; reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company
recognizes unused MAT credit as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it is probable that
the Company will be able to utilise during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be caried forward. In the year in which the Company recognises
deferred tax asset (MAT credit) as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the MAT asset at each reporting date and

* wiites down the asset to the extent that it is not probable that the Company will be able to
utilise it during the specified period.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is required to make
judgments’, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

a. Business model assessment

Classification and measuremiefit of financial asséts depends on the resulis of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the
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5.2

Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model
for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to
the classification of those assets.

b. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to [2-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information,

c. Consolidation of structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not

'~ the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate

to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. In the context of the Company, structured entities comprise securitisation trusts
in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative investment funds /
schemes thereof. The Company consolidates the structured entities that it controls. When
ntaking this judgement, the Company also considers voting and similar rights available to
itself and other parties, who may limit the Company’s ability to control, including rights to
appoint, reassign or remove members of the structured entity’s key management personnel
who have the ability to direct the relevant activities, the exposure to variability of returns and
whether the Company has the ability to use its power to affect the amount of the Company’s
returns i.e. the variability of returns in relation to the total returns of the investee entity.

d. Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to

Cexercise the option 10 refiew of to tefiiinate (€.g., construction of significant leasshold =

improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the stand-alone financial statements are prepared. Existing
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market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values.

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow

. model. given. thaf the SRs are less lanid instruments, Bxpected cash flow levels including
timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding
the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are

oeese-hased o models; - Judgements - and estimates “are applied, which “include conisiderations “of

liquidity, credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and
volatility.

b. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

* PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions,

* The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
loss and the qualitative assessment.

- =...The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a-collective basis. -

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

* Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD.

* Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.
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c. Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life
of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour
and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

d. Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that

[ Iy SN - SRS | D S L DR 1 e

s oo oo tanable profit will -be - available wgainst which the losses can be uiilised. Significani
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the
Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated
future taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The
losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which the Company expects that there
will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

¢. Estimating the incremental borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate
is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment.

6. Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in méllions)

8 Investments

As at 31 March 2021

At fair value through
Particulars P&L
At fair value through profit and loss
Investments in units of fund

Units of AIF 19.51
Total - Gross {A) 19.51
{i) Investments outside India -

{ii) Investment in india 19.51
Total (B) 19.51
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) -

Tota] Net {(A-C) 19.51

As at 31 March 2020

At fair value through
Particulars P&L
At fair value through profit and loss
Investments in units of fund
Tlmitc pf AT e . . A R . . 1555
Total - Grass (A) 18.59
(i} Investments outstde India -
(it} Investment in India 18.59
Total {(B) 18.59

Less: Allowance for impairment (C) s
Total Net (A-C) 18,58
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{Currency : Indian rapees in millions)
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits, held as margin mmoney or security deposit with Exchanges and VAT aathority 0.25 0.04

- Long term bank deposits with banks {fixed deposits)

[Pledged with sales tax authorities for meeting deposit requirements Rs. 0.25 millions;

(Previous year Rs, (.04 millions}]

- Accrued interest on fixed deposits® 0.01 0.00
(Note « *0.00 indicates amount tess than Rs 5,000)

0.26 0.04
10 Other financial assets
Deposits placed with/exchange/depositories 0.40 .45
Deposits- others 0.02 0.02
0.42 0.47
ii * Current tax assets {net}
Advance income taxes 3.12 6.52
3.12 6.52
12 Deferred tax assets {net)
Deferred tax asscts
Propesty. plant and cquipment and intangibles
Difference between boek and tax depreciation (including intangibles) 0.06 0.06
Disallowances under scetion 43B of the neome Tax Act, 1961 0.08 n.i4
Hnused gax credit
MAT credit entitlement - 0.00
¢.14 0.20
Deferred tax liabilitics
Property, pfant and cquipment and intangibics
Difference between book and tax depreciation (including intangibles) - 0.02
Investments and other financial instruments
Unrealised gaén on derivatives - 0.01
u 0.03

i @
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{Currency : Indian rupees in mmillions)
12 (i) Income tax disclosure

(a) The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March

(Particatars N | 31 March 2021 3] \fIarch 2020 |
Current tax ‘ 2 .
Adjuqlmcnt in respeet of current income tax of prior years ‘ (3.94) 0.94) |
‘Deferred tax rclauné to origination and reversal OFRCmpnrﬂry differences { . 0.02 T 12_03t
[ | )
Deferre:! tax recot,“lsed on unused t'w credit o unused tax losses® I](]l]l T
[Tolal tax charge . U SOUNY 1)) FUNNURNY | .. 3
Larenttax e 3B (0.9),
Deferred tax B - e 00 1203

(b} Reconciliation of total tax charge ;

5 ,",“"““‘“’5 - 31 March2021 31 March 2020 j
]
1 P i
; (89.70)1 (a2 09)|
. H — i
{Tax rate {in percentage) ! 25 17% ‘ 25.00%:
Incomc 1ax expense caloulated based on on this tax rate T T .. §10.52) i
Adjustmcnt fn respect of current income tax of prior yoars (3.94) :
) Effc::t of non—deduchhlc expcnses. ' o
1".;1'1“1'..& """" -
Owers e ; -
§Eff'ect of utilisation of tax lesses or deferred tax assets on losses earlier 21.81
irccogmscd now considered not recoverahle
Efﬁ,ct of non-recognition of deferred tax assel ont LUI’I‘CH(-le’]Ud losscs -
"Writedown of avaitable tax credits which arc not considered recoverable | T - J
«{for example, Minimum Alternate Tax credlt)‘ ; i
Others. ] o 038 0.74
Tax charge for thc year reeordcd in st 1l t of profit and loss i @on: 1109

Movement for the period (2020-21) _ |

{c} The fallowing table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the fncome tax expease:

; 'Opening deferred tax * Recognised in IRecognised in ather I Total " {Closing deflerred tax ;
: :asset / (liability) as per;profit and loss rcomprehensive ‘movement sasset / (liabifity) as pcr
: ]nd AS ; jincome ; Ind AS

relutmn Io' -

| Property, plant 3 .md cquipment
Employee benelits abligations*
Unrealised loss on derivatives o
Unused tax eredits {including but not limited 10
| Minimum ajternate tax credit)*

{Total

_z . Muvemcnt f'or the  period (2019-20)

ax ¢ Recognised in ‘Recognised in other ’Totai © "Closing deforred tax |
asset / (Hability) as per pro[’t and loss ‘eomprehensive immcmnnt ‘asset{ (liability) as per!
lnd AS jincome : !nd AS E

Doferred taxes in relation tos L L U
Property, plant and equipment _LLeen o - oo feen)]
©s)

Employce benefits obligations (0.53)]

Unrealised gain on derivati ] iy (11,323

Unused 1ax credits (including but not limited 1o - - -

Minimum alternate tax eredity* . [ B J I

Share issue expenses ) | (O.1630
|

Totai Cazesy. aze;

31 March 021 | 31 March 2030 |

‘Hreakeup of recopnition of Current fax

WmP&L ] T I (A 2))
. ! - ! -

taxrecordedin OCI | 31 March2021 31 March 2020

iCurrenttax | - =
Deferred tux® R _oo, 0D
Total ! 0.00 | {001y

TTTAsat3dlMarch2021 ¢ Unused tax losses
Financial Year endmg Amount ‘ Loss Expiry )uar
L) H
. 2 T ; . .
° 4 31 March 2021 i 08123 3 March 2029
o 31 March 2020 b 79630 31 March 2028
Totall 170,85 -

{Nole - *0.00 indicales amounl less than Ry 5,000)
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(Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

13

14

. Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Stock in trade
At fair value through profit and loss
Particulars

Debentures
Total

Stock in trade outside India
Stock in trade in India

"Total

Less: Allowance for impairment
Total

Trade receivables

Other reccivables

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

587.19 264.92
587.19 264.92
587.19 264.92
587.19 264.92
5§7.19 264.92
0.05 n1s .
0.05 0.13
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(Currency : Indian rupees in milkions)

15

16

Cash and cash equivalents
Batlances with banks
- in current accounts

Bank balances othetr than cash and cash equivalents

- Short term deposits with banks

[Pledged with Exchanges for meeting base capital requirements

Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 1.75 millions]

[Pledged with sales fax autherities for meeting deposit requirements Rs. Ni;
(Previous year Rs. 0.14 milkions)]

- Accrued interest on fixed deposits

As at
31 March 202}

As at
31 March 2020

2.88 2.31
2.33 231
- 1.89
- 0.08

£,97
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

17  Loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2021

At amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand -
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Total -

Unsecured -
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Total -

Loans in India
Others -
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Total -

Particulars As at 31 March 2020
Loans

At amortised cost
Ladiig fépayable on demand 0.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Total 0.00

Unsecured 0.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Total 0.00

Loans in India

Others 0.00
Less: Impairment foss aflowance -
Total 0.00
Nofe:

*0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millioas)

18  Other financial assets

Margin placed with brokers

Accrued interest on margin
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

19 Other non-financial assets

Input tax credit
Other deposits
Prepaid cxpenses
Vendor advances

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

502.69 -
- 1.59
6.17 0.46
502.86 205
9.67 .22
6.02 0.02
401 0.0t
0.10 0.04
9.80 1129
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20

21

As at
31 March 2021
Equity share capital
Authorised ;
30,000,000 {Previous year: 30,000,000} cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach 300.00
300.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
30,000,000 (Previous year: 30,000,000} equity shares of Rs. E0 each 300.00
{The cntire paid up sharc capital is held by Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited,
the holding company and i{s nominees)
30000

Movement in share capital during the year

Asat
31 Maxch 2020

300.00

300.00

300,00

300.00

Asat 31 March 2021

Asg at 3F March 2020

No of shares Amount  No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3.,00,00,000 300,00 3,00,00,000 300.00
Shares issued during the year N o ) . - - - -
Outsianding at the end of the year o I ) ) ~3,00.06,000 300.00 _ 3,00,00,000 300.00

Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a pur value of Re 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be eatitled to reccive remaining asscts of the Company, after distribution of preferential asums, The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares held by helding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

No of shares % _ Noof shares %o
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited, the holding company and its nominees 3,00,00,000 100% 3,00,00,000 H0%
3,60,08,000 100% _ 3.00.00,000 100%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

No of shares % No of shares %
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited, the holding company and its nominees 3,00,00,000 100%, 3,00,00,000 100%
3,00,00,000 100% 3.00,00,000 100%
Other equity
Securities premium 208.34 208,34
Deemed capital contribution - ESOP 1.08 1.08
Add : Additions during the year - -
1.08 1.08
Opening balance (576.72) {97.33)
Add: {Loss) / Profit for the year {8579 {(33.18)
Add: Other compreliensive ircome for the year 0.01 (426,21}
(662.50) (576.72)
(453.08) (367.30)
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Asat As at
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
22 Provisions
Gratuity 0.22 0.41
Compensated leave absences 0.01 0.05
0.23 046
23 Berrowings
{at Amartised Cost)
Unsecured
Loan from related parties payable on demand 1,276.61 366.32
(Loans arc repayable on demand at variable rate of 11.40% to 11.75% per annum)
1,276.61 366.32
Borrowings in India 1,276.61 366.32
Borrowings outsi(_ic India ) ) o - -
1,276.61 366,32
24 Trade Payables
Trade payables from non-related parties 1.21 0.95
Trade payables from related parties 0.26 3.18
1.47 4.43
25 Other financial liabilities
Other payables* 0.90 041
Accrued salaries and benefits 0.50 -
(Note - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000)
0.50 0.41
26 Other current liabilities
Others - 0.68
Statutory ducs 0.40 1.57
0.40 2.25
27 Provisions
Gratuity 0,05 0.09
Comgpensated leave absences 6.03 0.0]
0.08 0.50
28 Current tax liabilities (net)
Bovision for taation ey e
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29

A)

(B)

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/ (loss) en financial instruments at fair

value through profit or loss

On trading portfolio

= Investments
Profit / {loss) on trading of securities (net)
Fair value gain - P&L - debt

- Derivatives

Loss on equity derivative insiruments (net)

Profit on commodity derivative instruments (net)

Others
Encome distribution from fund
Share of loss in parinership firm

Tatal Net gain/{foss) on fair value changes (A+B)

Fair value changes:

“Realised gainloss)

Unrealised gain/(loss)

Total net gain on fair value changes

for the year ended
31 March 2021

for the year ended
31 Mareh 2020

3538 (1.01)
337 -
(52.17) £30.40)
- 10.33
13.62) (21.08)
0.06 0.04
(4.03) {0.57)
(17.55) (21.62)
(20.76) " (20.66)
3.17 (0.96)
(17.59) 21.63)
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30 Interest income

For the year ended 31 Marceh 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2020

On financial asscts

Interest Income on
Financial Assets

On financial assets

Interest Income on
Financial Assets

Particulars measured at . . Total measured at classificd at fair Total
. classified at fair value .
amertised cost amortised cost value
through profit or loss
through profit or loss
Interest on loans - - - 6.20 - 6.20
Interest income from investments - 4346 43.46 - 1.34 1.34
Interest on deposits with banks 8.06 - 0.06 0.62 - .62
Interest income on margin®* 6.00 - 0.00 15.82 - £5.82
Total 0.06 43.46 43,52 22,64 .34 23.98

(Note - *0.00 indicates amount tess than Rs 5,000)
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31  Otherincome

Interest Income - On Tax Refund

32  Employce bencfit expenses

Sataries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOPY*
Staff welfare expenses
(Note - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000}

for the year ended
31 March 2021

for the year ended
31 March 2020

.22 -
0.22 -
2.63 3.76
0.10 0.14
- 0.00
0.04 0.19
2.77 4.09
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33  TFinance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2020

On financial

liabilities On financial liabilities
Particulars measured at Total measured at amortised Total

amortised cost

cost

Interest on borrowings 72.64 72.64 32.32 3232
Interest on margin - - 0.04 0.04
Interest - others® - - 0.00 0.00
Total 72.64 72.64 32.36 32.36

{Note - *0.00 indicates armount less than Rs 5,000)
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions) for the year ended  for the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

34 Other expenscs

Advertisement and business promotion* - 0.00
Auditors' remuneration (refer note below) 0.20 0.35
Commission and brokerage 1.61 -
Communication 0.16 0.64
Insurance 0.02 -
Legal and professional fees 0.55 0.62
Printing and stationery 0.03 0.02
Rates and taxes™® . 0.00 0.01
Rent 0.14 0.85
Compuler expenses 0.92 1.64
Computer software 0.16 0.82
Clearing and custodian charpes 1713 0.05
Dematerialisation charges - 6.06
Loss on sale of of fixed assets* 0.00 (0.00)
Membership and subscription 0.10 0.83
Office expenscs 423 0.59
Postage and courier ) (0.01) 0.03
...... ROC cxpcnscs"‘ B P P . P . B B . - . P 0-00
Securities transaction tax 8.61 0.02
Goods and service tax expenses 386 (0.70)
Commedity transaction tax cxpenses - 1.15
Stamp duty 0.81 0.00
Stock exchange expenses 1.62 6.71
Transportation charges* 0.00 0.0DH
Travelling and conveyance - 0.04
Miscellaneous expenses 0.07 0.05
40.20 7.77

(Note - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000)

Auditors’ remuneration :

As auditor 020 0.35
For other services " -

0.20 0.35
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35 Segment reporting
Business Segment:

The Company’s business is organised and the management reviews the performance, based on the business sepments as mentioned

betow;

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Interest Income on loans and other capital based activities

Treasury Income [rom (reasury operations, income [rom invesiments,
inlesest inconw on debt instniments and dividead income

Agency business Advisory and product distribution services

Income for cach sggrment has been specifically jdentified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are vither specifically identified with
individuzl segments or have beet allocated to segiments on 4 systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating
Lo revenue, resulis, assets and Habilities have been prepared.

Sccondary Segment:

Since the business operatiens of the Company are primarfly concentrated in India, the Cormpany is considered to operate only in the
domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The fullowing table gives information as required under the Indian Accounting Standard -308 on Opemiing Segment Reporting:

Partienlars oo e : : . - Yoar ended ]
3T March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Segment Revenue
Agency business - 0.61
Capital based business (4.03) 5.64
Treasury Business 29.83 (3.84)
Utidgllocated 0,12 -
Total Income 26,02 241
Segment Results
Agency business - {241
Capital based business (4.03) (22.72}
Treasury Business {§5.39) (19.37}
Unallocated 0.22 -
Total {89.70) (42.0%)
Loss before taxation {89.70% 42.09)
Sepment Assets
Agency business - 2.68
Capital bascd business - 0.00
Treasury Business [,113.45 288.15
Unallacated 12.93 17.91
Total assets 1,126.38 308.74
Segment Lizbilities
Apency business - 0.38
Capital bascd business - -
Treasury Business 1,278.89 371.04
Unallecated 0.57 4.61
Total liahilities 1,279.46 376.04
Capital employed | Segment assets - Segment Habilities]
Agency business - 230
Capital based business* - 0.40
Treasury Business {165.44) (82.90)
Unatlocated 12.36 13.30
Total capital employed (153.08) (67.30)
Capital Expenditurce { Including Capital Work-In-Progress )
Agency business* - {0.00}
Capital based business - "
Treasury Business - (0.06)
Unallocated - -
Total Capital Expenditure - (0.06)
Depreciation and Amortisation
Agency business* . 0.00
Capital based business . -
Treasury Business 6.11 0.28
Unallocated - -
Total Depreciation and Amortisation .11 0.28
Significant Non-Cash Expenses Qther than Depreciation and Amertisation
Agency business* - (0.00)
Capital based business - -
Treasury Business 9.84
T Unallocated -
SRR Total Sigrificant Non-Cash Expenses Other than Depreciztion and Amortisation 0.84

{MNote - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000}
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Disclosure as required by Indian Acccounting Standard- 24-Related Party Disclosurcs

List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions have taken place}

Body Corporate in which Immediate Holding company is a partner

Whele Titme Director

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, Ultimate holding Company

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited {Formerly Edelweiss Commoditics Services Lid) Holding

Company

Edel Investments Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

ECL Finanee Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelesp Securities Limited

Edelweiss General Insuranee Company Limited
Ede] Land Limiled

ECap Equities Limited

Edchwveiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP

Aditya Doshi (till 01 July 2019)

Related Parties disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard- 24 ;

Transactions with related parties :

Nature of transaction

Related party name

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Current account

ctions

Short term loans taken from
{Maximum of debit & credit {ransaction)

Short ferm loans repaid to
{Maximum of debit & credit transaction)

Short term Joans taken from
(Total of debit & credit transaction)

Short term {oans repaid to
(Totat of debit & credit transaction)

Short term loans given 1o
(Maximum of debit & credit transaction)

Short tetm loans repaid by
{Maximun of debit & credit transaction)

Short term loans giver to
{Total of debit & credit transaction}

Short term logns repaid by
{Totwl of debit & credit transaction)

Margin placed with

Margin withdrawn from

interest cxpense on loans from

intcrest income on margin placed with

Shate ufotlier cunysreliensice o (OCTY i paeuership G
Enterest income on debt instrament of

Shate of loss in partnership firms

Intcrest income on loans given

Reimbursements paid to

Cost reimbursement to

.

Group mediclaim insurance paid 1o

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited

Edelwziss Rural & Corporzle Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edclwziss Rural & Corporaie Services Limited

Edclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edehweiss Ruml & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Reelwetss Ml Steatgpy Find Advisoss LLP
Edehweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited
Edehweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP
Edelweiss Rural & Comorate Services Limited
Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edehweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Sccurilies Limiled

ECL Finance Limited

ECap Equitics Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelcap Securities Eimited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited

921.73
899.57
6,236.47

5,328.30

2,i95.33

1,696.46
72.64

0.0¢

43.46

4.03

1,501.22

1,196.90

4,302.36

3,842,065

25%.60

259.50

260.10

260.50
150.50

0.02
642,05

23z




Cost reimbursement from

Purchase of Investment

Purchase of Fixed Asscts

Salc of fixed Assets
Sale of fixed Assels

Purchase of debt seeuritics from

Sale of debt securities lo

Amaount paid to broker for cash scgment

Amount received to broker for cash segment
Clearing expenses o

Interest on delayed payment

Demat charges paid to

Brokerage piid to

Remuneration paid to {Refer note below)

Edelhweiss Financial Scrvices Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisars LLP

ECap Equitics Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited
ECap Equities Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edel Land Limited

ECap Equities Liméted

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edel Land Limited

Edehveiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Seeurities Limited
Edelweiss Custodiat Services Limited
Edelweiss Custoding Services Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edeiveiss Securitics Limited

Aditya Doshi

0.H
0.00
509.89
33532
1,060.34
495.24

445.14
717.28

988.51

9%6.15

0.18

14.26

.00

0.28

0.52
0.02

752,50

0.00
0.01

0.01
0.01

Caa

1.35
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Related Partics disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard- 24 :

il Transactions with related parties (Continued):

Nature of transaction Reilated party name 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance with related pariies
Short term foans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,269.02 360.85
Trade payable to Edelwaiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10 1.62
ECap Equities Limited 000 041
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 017 0.34
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.55 0.55
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.00 0.c0
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited - 0.09
Edeleap Seeurities Eimited - 049
ECL Firance Limited 0.00 017
Edel Investments Limited - 0.03
Other payable 1o Edclweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.26 -
Acerued interest expense on loans laken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 7.58 5.47
Accrued interest income on margin given Edclweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.00 -
Accrued interest income on debt instrument Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 9,79 -
Trade receivables from Edelweiss Rural & Cosporate Services Limited 0.15 019
Edelweiss Custodizl Services Limited 0.00 1.58
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.01 0.37
ECap Bquittes Limited - (.01
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.00 .
Other receivable from Edehveiss Financial Services Limited 0.17 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.00 -
Acertled interest income on loans given Edelweiss Rural & Cosporate Services Limited - 0.00
Partner's current account - {payable to) / receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLI’ (0.00) ©0.57)
(Net off with investments in parirership firm)
Stock in trade - debentures and bends Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 577.40 -
Margin receivable from Edclweiss Custodial Services Limited 502.42 -
Nate:

L. As part of fund based aclivities, inlergroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are generally in the nalure of revolving demand loans, Such loans and advances,
voluminous in nature, are carried o at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures, inlergraup loans given and 1epaid are
disclosed above as maximum of debit and credit of transactions aid total of debit and credit of ransactions a5 in the view of the management it provides meaningful reflection of sucl
related party transactions on the financial staternents. Intercst income and expenses on such loans and advanees aziivities are disciosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and
advances given and repaid,

2. Loan received from feliow subsidiary companies and loan given to subsidiary companies aze for the general comporate business purpeses.

3. Infermation relating to remuneration paid to key management! personnel mentiened above excludes provision made for gratuity. leave encashment and deferred bonus which are
provided for group of employees on an overall basis, These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein & on cash basis,
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Derivative financial instruments

() The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional

amounts.

31 March 2021 _

—_—- i " Notic i__ Fair value of g - ~ .. Notional Notional Fair valuc of
.Particulars oons asset ! Unit | ar:c:E:?* liability (INR) i
Index finked derivatives o R S JRE T S K
Andex Futures Number of index units | =L - Numberofindesunits | " 191425, 348
-Options sold (written) | Number of index units | ] - Numberofindexunits -~ 10000 0.4
Less: amount offset - - ! 282
Subtotal i - i -
: |
Equity linked derivatives | . I S T R
|-Stock Futures Number of shares 28,84.475 _19.12 |Number of shares 24085471 1431
ss: amount offset : ; 19.12 : 14.31
_ui)thtal o ! - ! _
[Total Derivative Financial ] ! |
IInstrnments : - - R -
. . _ 31 March 2020 o ]
- Notm"a;]- - w-i Fajr value of . Notional = Fair value of
Unit ;  National asset Unit Notional Tiability
Particulars .l L amoune* I smount* TV
() Equity linked derivatives o B O N
i-Stock Futures Number of shares ! ©.12 Number of shares 44,650 007
Less: amount offset : ) L 0.07
Subtotal(i) ) L - - i e
Total Derivative Financial B o : T - T B
Instruments } - - - -

* Notional amount represents quantity in case of equity linked and index linked derivatives.
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37  Derivative financial instruments

(b) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets subject to offsetting 31 March 2021

Offsetting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross liability . | Net liability recognised in
before offset | SMOURt offset balance sheet
Derivative finunciai assets 19.12 19.12 -

Finaneial liabilities subject to offsetting 31 March 2021

Offsctting recognised in the balance sheet

Graoss liability Net liability recognised in
.
before offset Amount offset balance sheet
Derivative financial liability 17.12 17.12 -

*As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets and liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin is Rs. 19.12
millions and Rs 17.12 millions respectively.

Offsctting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross asset
before offset

Amount offset®

Net asset recognised in
balance sheet

A Derivative RnAnCIAlaSSeIS. ..o oo e

T

-0.12

Financial liabilities subjeet to offsetting 31 March 2020

Offsetting recognised in the baiance sheet

Grass Jinbility « | Net liability recognised in
before offset Amount offset balance sheet
Berivative financial liability 0.07 0.07 -

*As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets and liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin is Rs. 0.12

millions and Rs 0.07 millions respectively.
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38 Earnings per share:

The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
() Profit after tax {as per statement of profit and loss}
(85.79) (53.18)
(b} Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each:
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
30,00 30.00
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year
30,00 30.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
{c) Basic and dituted earnings per share (in rupecs) (a)/(b)
(2.86) (1.77)

The basic and diluted carnings per share are the same as there are no. dilutive potential equity shares,

3% Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency
The Company did not have any earnings or expenditure in foreign currency during the reporting year, (Previous year Nil)
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Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 12 - Employee benefits:

A} Defined contribution plan (Provident fund)

An amount of Rs. 0.10 mio {Previous year: Rs. 0.E4 mio) is recognised as expense and included in “Employee benefit expenses™ — Note 32 in the

statement of profit and loss.

B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity)

The following tables summarize the components of the nct benefit expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss, the unfunded status and

amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan,
Statement of profit and losy

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Current scrvice cost 0.04 0.07
“iinicrest on detined heneiit Gbligation 0.01 0.03

Net actuarial {gain)fioss recognized in the year {0.24) (0.23)

Employer Expenses {6.18) {0.13)

Balance shect

Reconciliation of Defined Bencfit Obligation (DBO)

. For the year ended| For the ycar ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present Value of DBO at start of the year 0.50 1.86
Service Cost
Current service cost .04 0.06
Interest cost 0.01 0.03
Benefit paid - -
Re-measurements - -
- Actuarial (Loss) Gain from changes in demographic assumptions (0.01) -
- Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from change in financial assumptions 0.01 0.03
- Actuarial Loss/(Gain) frem experience over the past year (0.01) (0.06)
Transfer in/(out) (0.26) (143)
Present Value of DBO at end of the year 0.28 0.50
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended

31 March 2020

Fair value of plan assets at start of the year
Contributions by Employer
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets end of the year
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Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits {continued):

Net Hability / (assets) recognised in the balance sheet:

Movement in other comprehensive income

31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain

Re-measurements on DBO

- Actuarial (Loss) Gain from changes in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from change in financial assumptions

- Actuariat Loss/(Gain) from expericnee over the past year
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain

0.23

0.01
(0.01)
0.01
0.24

0.20

{0.03)
0.06

0.23

Sensitivity Analysis @

DBO increases/ {decreases) by

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

1% Increase in salary growth rate 0.01 0.03
1% Decrease in salary growth rate (0.0%) (0.03)

% Increase in discount rate (0.01) (0.03y

% Decrease in discount rate 0.01 0.03
1% Increase in withdrawal rate (9.00) (0.00)
1% Decrease in withdrawal rate 0.00 0.00
Mortality {increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) Negligible Change | Negligible Change
Mortality {increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) Negligible Change | Negligible Change

Note: The sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other
parametess congtant. There are no changes from the previous period o the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity

Particulars As at As at Asal As at Asg at
31 March 2028] 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.28 0.50 1.86 1.40 2.99
Fair value of plan assets at she end of the year
Amount in Balance sheet — Liability 0.28 0.50 1.86 140 2.99
Experience adjustment:
Particulars As at Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2021| 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 3t March 2018 31 March 2017
Lot plan Babilitiee: fonindlage . 001y nngy 0223 ooz {834}
On plan assets: (gain)/(loss) - - u - -
Estimated contribution for the next year - - - - -
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
i For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate (% p.a.} 5% 5.90%
Salary escalation (% p.a.) 7% %
Interest rate on net DBO/ (Asset) (% p.a.) 5.9% T%
Withdrawal rate (% p.a.) 25% £3 % -25%
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Capitat Commitment :
The Cempany has capital commitments of Rs.Nil as at the balance shect date (Previous year: Rs.Nil).

Contingent liability:

a) The Company has contingent liability of Rs.1.02 mio as at the balance sheet date {Previous year Rs.0.45 mio).

b) The Company has received demand notices from tax anthorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income under Section
14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed appealis and is defending its position. Based on
the favourable outcome in Appeltate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, company is reasanably certain about sustaining its position

in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits on this ground is remete,

Details of dues te micro, small and medium enterprises
Trade Payables includes Rs, Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payablc to “Supplicrs” registered under the Micro, Smafl and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforementioned is based on

HIHER T T e TN

Cost sharing:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent,
electricity charges cte. which is for the commen benefit of itself and it's certain subsidiarics, fellow subsidiarics including the Company. This cost so

- expended-is-reimbursed by the: Company on-the-basis- of munber of conployees, selual identifications; busis of ares occupied et Accordingly, mid a§

identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 31 include reimbursernents paid.

Caorporate socinl responsibility (CSR):
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013:
a) Gross smount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. NIL (Previous year: Rs.1.01 mio)

b) Amount spent during the ycar on:

Yet to be paid in
Particulars In cash (PY} cash Total
Constructions / acquisition of any assets - - -
ther t i . .
On purpose other than (i) above (il i il

Employee Stock Option Plans

Tke ultimate Holding Compary (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL™) has Employee Stock Option Plans in force. Based on such ESOP
schemes, parent cntity has granted an ESOP option to acquire cquity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to company’s cmployees. Based
on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same
under the employee cost.
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47 Risk Management framework:-

(a) Governance framework

The primary objective of the Cornpany’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company's sharcholders from events that hinder the sustainablie achicvement of
financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key management recogmises the critical importance of having efficient and cffective risk management systems in

place.

(b) Approach to capital managentent

Company objectives when managing capital, are to (2) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to cther stakehelders ; and (b) maintain an optimal capitat structure to reduce the

cost of capital.

Fer the purposes of the Company's capital 1

Company meniters capital asing debl.equity ratio, which is tatal debt divided by tolal equity.

ment, capital includes issucd capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to 1l equity holders.

As at st March
Particulars 31st March 2021 2020
Total Borrawings 1,276.6% 366.32
Equity (153.08) (67.30)
Net Debt to Eqnity {8.34) {5.44)

{e) Market risks.. .

Risk which can affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial insiruments duz to adverse movements in markel prices of instrument due to price risk, The objeclive
of the Company's market risk management is te manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

(i) Total market risk exposure

Fair value or futur¢ cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate duc to changes in market variables such as interest rates, forcign exchange ratcs and equity prices. The Company
classifics exposurcs to market risk into cither trading or non-trading portfolics and manages cach of those portfolios separately. Such risks the market risk for the trading portfolio is
managed and monitored based on a VaR methodology that reflects the interdependency between risk variables, Non—trading positions are managed and monitarcd using other sensitivily

analyses,

‘Particulars

iAssets e

:Casl: and cash equivalent and other bank balances

amotnt |

[Stock-in-trade

Other fnancial assets
{Investments— at amortised cost

19.51

___31March2021

31 March 2020

Casrying amount

Traded risk Non-traded risk

“Tutal

1,113.16 |

290.49 |

264.92

31 March 2020

Particetars i o Traded risk  {Non-traded risk
Liability . . } . ) E o
Borrowings (other than Debl Securities) I 127661 - | L2T66LT 36632 - 366.32
Trade payables T T T sy 414
Othet liabilities 0.50 - 050 oal . 441
Total 1,278.58 - 1.278.58 370.87 | A 370.87 ¢

{Note - *0.00 indieates amount less than Rs 5,400)
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47 Risk Management framework:- (Continued)
(c¢) Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in equity share prices.

i
N e : e ST -
i H :
/Increase in index, Effect on profit |Effect on :Deerease in index Effect on profit . Effect on
- Impact on price (%) beforetax Equity {price (%) ‘before tax Equity
. Dedvaives LS el R SO N (> -
e 025 i 025
s awea T
Increase in indexlEt’fccl on profit  |Effect on rease in index Effect on profit [ Effect on
i FO7Y L e B R 8 e H T
i . Deht securities "

(iii} Index price risk

lideg fricé fisk is thie risk that fhe fawr value or fufure cash flows of a financial instrumens will fluctuate because of changes in the level of equity indiccs.

S . SO . Breren . P

C ’ T ) o Increase in indcxfE't'fEc_t_x;H_]_ﬁ-';J_ﬁ_t_"_Efféét on [Decreasein iﬁﬂék]ﬁfﬁé?&ﬁ_ﬁaﬁf Effecton
Lmpact on price (%) jbeforetax  |Equity price (%) | efore fax Equity
Derivatives e S 407600 ] s 176,06 -
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47

Risk Management frameworil:- (Continaed)

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk arises wlhen a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, feading to a

financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and financial instruments.
The Company’s management policy is to closely monitor creditworthiness of counterpartics by reviewing their credit ratings, financial

statements and press release on regular basis.

The Company’s financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within Ind AS 109 are short-term trade and other receivables and

financial instruments. Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. Expected credit loss allowance in

respect of receivables is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account hislorical credit loss experience.

‘Frade receivables

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Receivables considered good - Unsceured 0.05 0.15
Total 0.05 0.15
Provision matrix for Trade receivables
Trade reecivables days past due Current 1-90days Total
ECL rate 0%
31 March 2021 |Estimated total gross catrying amount at default - .05 0.05
ECL - Simplified approach - - -
Net carrying amount - 0.05 0.05
31 March 2020 |Estimated total gross carrying amount at default “ 0.15 0.15
ECL - Simplified approach - - -
Net carrying amount - 0.15 0.15
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47 Risk Magagement framework:- (Continued)
(¢} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is delined as the risk that the Comparsy will encounter difficully in mecting ebligations associaled with fisangial liabilities (hat are setiled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposurc to liquidity risk ariscs becausc of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its trade payables carlicr than expected.

(i) Analysis of non-derivative financial lizbilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summariscs the maturity profife of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s nan-derivative financial hiahilitics as at 31 March.

Repaytents which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will not request repayment on the earliest date it
could be required to pay.

As at 31 March zuz'i' § 0 to & months; 6 n'u:m-lhs m__lyezr o 1 )car 10.3 _';'ea.r.s. j_v.ears 405 S’enrs [ 0\‘0!‘.5 _\.‘ea:sﬁji'olal
Trade payzbles ! 147 ; L T . L —
anrrowings (other than debt securities) 1.276.61 1 - - -
|Qther financial liabilities 0.50 | - - N

«

| Totad undiscounted non-gerivative financial labilities opziess| - | e

- - L 1888

yearstoSyears ' Over 5 yearsiTotal

As st 31 March 2020 _____Swmonths] Gmonthstw Iyear  1yearto3 years;
Ts bles B L 4.14 ‘
Borrowings (othe ..36632

0.41
Toto] undiscounted non-derivative financial linbilities b 370.86

Other financial liabilities
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47 Risk Management framework:- (Continued)

(il) Analysis of non-derivative financial asscts by remaining contractual maturitics
The table below summarises the matusity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's non-derivative financial assets as at 31 Marcls,

AsatSiMarh2021 I I Dtosmonths omomthstolyear,  1yearw3years3yearstoSyowrs OverSyes|Tatl
Cash and ¢ tandother bank batances | : L -l 288
iOther bank balances 26 i 0.26
Stockdintade - - S87.19
Trade recevables : : o008
Investments at fair value through profif or loss T 1951
Other financiai assets - i - i - - 50£.27
[Total__ e - 026 B S NTTRT

. month to 1 year|

As at 31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balainu:

Other bank batances e
Stack-in-trade

Trade receivables
Loans™

[nvestments at fair valie through profit or doss

Other financial assets

Tomt

{Note - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5.000)
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47 Risk Management framework:« (Continued)
(§1E) Maturity analysis for derivatives:

All derivatives which are ertered into for irading purposes arc shown in the carlicst time band. With respect to ather derivatives, the remaining contractual maturity information has been given based

an undiscounted cash flows.

[AsatsiMarchzor e el DtnGmonths]  Toul
| Net settled derivatives entered inta for trading puspascs 2.00 2.00
i e Cemvany mn fortasme pieeE I - O . el [ P
;Tnlal 200 ¢ 200
AsatdiMarch2020 ) e | ttoswonts] T otal
Net settled derivatives entered into for trading purpeses S 0.05 0.05
Total 005 ¢ 0.05 ;

Saadinx,

SR
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47 Risk Management framework:- (Continued)
(e} Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Disclosure related to coffateral

Following table sets out availability of Company's financial assets to support funding :

Pledge as i Available as others 2 Fotal carryin;
| Asaf 31 March 2021 co]!a‘t;eral | others 1 collateral refer note-1 ¢ amuml:lir ¢
Cash and cash equivalent including bank balance - - - 288 288
Other bank balance I N 026 |
Stock in trade - 9.79 - 587.10_
Trade receivables - o 005, - 0.05
Investments T 19.51 | T i 18,51
Other financialassets 1 - _— 503.27 | o Lo 80327
{Property, plant and equipment - - - 0.15 0.15 !
Total assets 577.66 | - 532.62 | 3.03 ! 1,113.31 ¢
Pledge as ! Availableas : others2 Total carryin

? Asat 31 March 202¢ caiin_%g[nl_____ _‘{___ot_iyp_r_s_i . __collaterat | refernote~1 | amoul:f i

i Cash and cash equivalent including bank balance - - L 231 231
{Other bank balance o 2.01
[Stuck in trade i 1593 - 264,92
{Trade receivables S A £ - 0.15
loans* T T T SO U 1 - 000
Investments - - JIBS9 - 1859
Other financial assets 047 i - 046 . L.sg: 251
Prc?;?erty, plant and equipment - - - 0.26 0.26
Total assets 251.47 | - 35.13 4.15 294075

{MNote - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000)

1 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as colfateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available 1o secure funding in the

normal course of business
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48 Analysis of risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2621 e e

i

Particulars ! Financial services | Total
!
i

Fmant:lal assct
Cash and casil equwa[cm ‘and other bank bu]unces

{Financial assets carried at fair value _ll_a_rough prof tand loss
‘Stockintrade

Trade and ‘other receivables

Other financial assets

Total

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2020

Flnanclal assets '_ T
!Cash and cash cquwalem and other b;mk bamees S
‘Financial assets carried at fair value - through profit and loss o

Stock in trade
dee and other receivables

[Loans*
Otrer fnancialassels | 251 251
Total | 290.49

(MNote - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000)
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49 Fair values of financial instruments

(i)

The following table shows an analysis of financiat instruments before offsetting recorded at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy

— S e o SMarch2021
Part:cu]ars ) o iLevell
_Asscts mez-q'su_red at fa|r value ona recurrmg bas:s

i = . - [

|
'Dcrwatwc ﬁnancml :nsirumenls (assets) e

'_!‘otal derivative t'nanc:a] instruments (asscts)

Stock-in-trade

Other deb—t—s&_:ilr:tles and pref_ ;:Ece slmrcs L
Total stock-in-trade

investmerl-t;j'
Units of AIF - . S

i
Total investments measured at fair value :
,Totg! financial asscts measured at fair value on a  recurring basis ’

Parnculars - ' . L._“._‘_'E’-_E_i__.__._

Liabilities measured at fa:r valuc ona recurrl _g g basis - o i

ut:uvauv"u uuunum RSTUTETHS iL-IIlUlll

‘ o T o ] 31 March 2:120"
Partlcu]ars _ Levell L 7ﬁﬁ”meriotal_
|Asscts measurcd at fair value on a recurring bas1s ) [ _J_ )
Derivative financial instruments (Assetsy. ) [ . : ) .
Exchunge»tmded derivatives o B ,, ) D l” .
‘Total den_va_m_fgfnanclal instruments (assets) o 3 ] D 12 | N . 0a2°
;Stock—m-trade _ ) ] B | S
chﬁ' bt securitics and prefere_nce shares L 1 264 92_ 204892
Fotal stock-in-trade - N - T agem2 T 26492
I“Ves‘ments . - . - b PP —— - e .__._._.
Units of ATF o ) T sse. 1859
Total investments measured at falr value ) o 18 59 ; o 18.59
Total ﬁnancml nsscts measured at fair value on a rccurrmg hasxs 283063 ' ) . 283.63
- o Vo 3MMarchz020 |
Partlculars _________ ] Total i
Lizbilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis - T B . N
Eggyahye_ﬁﬂgrlcml instruments (Liabifities): ) - \ o o L, i
Exchange-traded derivatives L s o po7y 007
Ltal financial llabllltlcs measured at f fair value on a rccurrmg bas:s i o007l 0.07 |

Fair valuation technigues:

Debt securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate sceuritics, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative
charactesistics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at
the reporting date. Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt
sceurities are not activity iraded Company has used CRISIL Corporate Boad Valuer model for measuring fair value.

(i) Equity instruments and units of Alternative Investment Funds

The majerity of equity instruments are actively traded on recognized stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular
basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1. Units heid in funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into
nccount redemptinn andfor ather resteictions Such NAY Sach instruments arg generally Leve! 3, Equity instrumenss in non-listed entities
are initislly recognised at transaction price and re-measured ai each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument
level. Unlisted equity securitics are classified at Level 3.

(i) Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-partics, primarily banks with investment grade credit
ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are exchange traded futures and options contracts.
The most frequently applicd valuation techniques include quated price for exchange traded derivatives and Black Scholes madels (for
option valuation).
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40 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

31 March 2021
e e e Careying L S S |
Particalars o Amount |Total fair value  |Levell Level2 Leveld |
Financialassetss — L o e .
Cash and cash eguivalent N L2838 - .
:Baunk balances other than cash and cash equivatent 0.26 - ot
Trade Receivables - _ -
Other financial asscts . -
Total 34
Financial liabilith R ) . SRS AR S S
[ Trade payables . 147 ATL
Borrowing (other than debi securities) 1276617 L27eel, -
Other financial liabilities 0.50. 0.50¢

Total O 1zmeEsl 127858

. B T aiMarenze20 T
i ’ B e o iTodal Caryying 1 : C o : :

il’arﬁcuinrs Amount | Total fair value ‘Levcl 1 iLevcl?. Level 3

Lan . At - ] e

Financlal assets: _ T S e o
Cash and cash equivalent 231 53 BTt -— o
| Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent n 201 ] 201 i . 2_9]_1 - )

Toul . B S

Financial labilities L L S AR S
Trade payables o b 4,14 o Ald - C4lad -
‘Borrowing (other than debt sccuritics) 366.32 366321 - 366.32 -

Oter inancsl linblities S TTaa | oat) T eart 7
Total . | LY 1A S Y < S 1T 1

(Note - *0.00 indicates amount less than Rs 5,000}

Other financial assets ] o s sl I,, . . - o 2351 -
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51 Cash Flow disclosure :

Change in liabilities arising from Enancing activities

Cash N 7 [

1
©neon. Partienlars o 1Aprii2020 1 flows 0 Others® | 31 March _2‘_1_2?&
;Bprrowipggpjljgitllan debt securities : 366.32 ,:,,,, o eeR1T | 211 1,276.61 .
{Total fiabilities from financing activities 1 36632 908.17 | 2.11 1,276.61

- 7 TCash Y TTTE T
Particulars 1 April 2019 flows : Others* 31 March 2020
Borrowings other than debt securitics 0.76 360.30 | 526 366,32
Total liabilities from financing activities RN 360.30 536 36@:’12_1

* Others Includes interest acerued but not paid on financing liabilities.
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52

53

The management has prepared cash flow forecast which inter alia includes the key assumptions viz, (i) cash inflows generated by
the investing segment, based on reasonable expectations of generating cash inflows; (ii) proceeds from sale of investments and
(iii) need based support from the parent Company / Companies under the group. Based on the cash flow forecast the management
believes that the Company has sufficient working capital and financial resources for ongoing operations and business activities to
meet their obligations as and when they fall due and are of the view that the going concern assumption is appropriate for the
preparation of these financial statements.

Prior period comparatives

Previous year’s numbers have been regrouped and rearranged wherever required to confirm to current year’s presentation.
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